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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL. APPEARANCE

In 1815 a federal house was begun on the land of Joseph Washington 
in Robertson County. The two_story house with simple federal lines 
probably had a chimney on either end and a small square porch in 
front. It is made of red brick and has a limestone and brick 
foundation. The original house had a central hall with stairway and 
rooms to either side. The house today, however, still contains the 
original block but has had additions across the front and a wing to 
the back has been added in more recent years as the family remodeled 
and expanded.

The house is surrounded by several remaining outbuildings which were 
necessary in the operation of a plantation the size of Wessyngton. 
Originally there were many slave cabins, barns, a carriage house, 
caretakers quarters, poultry houses, a crib and gr&iae^ etc. ^ 
Today, the smokehouse, kitchen, dairy house, and office are among 
the remaining outbuildings.

rn
A lovely garden was designed and built south of the house for Mrs. 
Joseph Washington, wife of the builder. The flower garden is a plot - 
about one hundred feet square, having a circular summerhouse in 
the center. In each corner of the garden is a triangular bed, and | 
opposite each triangle is a circle. The design was a well proportioned 
one and is still quite evident. A walk past the entire garden leads 
to the family cemetery where four generations of the Washington 
family are buried.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Probably the most conspicuous and wealthy family in Middle Tennessee 
is the Washington family of Robertson County. It is not only 
prominent for wealth, but for high intelligence, social distinction, 
and good citizenship. For many decades its members were the largest 
planters in the state and won high merit as successful agriculturists 
as well as for distinguished civil service in the state. The land 
bought by Joseph Washington in 1796 and lands added soon after have 
stayed in the same family for five generations or over 150 years.

Jos^eph^ Washington came to Robertson County in 1796 from Virginia 
and first settled on 60 acres lying on the north side of Sulphur 
Fork Creek about 3 miles south of the present town of Cedar Hill. 
This land had been a land grant from North Carolina. Here he 
lived in a rude log house. In 1802 he purchased the remainder of 
the 6M-0 acre grant from MDses and Aaron Winters. He then moved to 
a house on this tract. Joseph Washington, like most farmers of 
that day, converted his surplus corn into whiskey and apples and 
peaches were turned into brandy as these were the most easily trans­ 
ported and most profitable crops for marketing. Many of the settlers 
in Robertson County came from southeastern Virginia and knew well 
the art of distilling which for many years brought fame to the county.

In 1808 Mr. Washington, then 4-2, married Mary Cheatham, 16, and in 
1815 began building Wessyngton which was completed in 1819. To 
Joseph and Mary a son was born in 18X5 and he was named George 
Augustine. George grew up like his father and cared only for the 
pleasures of a domestic and private life. The plantation begun under 
Joseph Washington flourished under George Augustine. After his 
father's death in 184-8, George took over the operation of the planta­ 
tion. Plantation records show that the value was listed in 1850 
at $20,000 and by 1860 its worth was listed at $250,000. Acreage 
grew from 4-, 700 acres to 13,000. The tobacco crop rocketed from 
15,000 bushels in 1850 to 250,000 bushels in 1860 making Washington 
one of the world's largest tobacco growers. Tobacco and hams were 
shipped from Wessyngton to New Orleans each year by chartered boat. 
According to newspapers of the period Washington hams were sought 
by hotels all over the South, which catered to the most exacting
taste, and even as far north as Philadelphia it was not unusual to 
see on the bill of fare of a high-priced restaurant "Washington 
Ham" as the tempting special on the menu.
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8. Significance (continued) 
In 1861 the war temporarily broke up the peaceful home life at 
Wessyngton. George had business interests in New York and spent 
much of the time there, even moving the family there when things 
seemed perilous at home. George never was interested in politics 
but finally served in the 38th Tennessee General Assembly from 
1873-75. His son Joseph Edwin (1851-191^, however, was more 
interested in politics and upon graduation from Vanderbilt Law 
School was elected to the Tennessee General Assembly in 1876. In 
1887, at the age of 36, he was elected to the U. S. House of 
Representatives where he served ten years.

George A. Washington died in 1892 and the following year the planta­ 
tion was divided among the surviving children. Joseph E. got the 
home tract which contained 799 acres. The remaining tracts, taken 
by the other children, had fine homes built on them very soon. 
Joseph, after returning to Wessyngton from Washington, D.C., was 
appointed county road commissioner and was elected a director of both 
the Nashville, Chattanooga, and St. Louis Railroad and the Nashville 
and Decatur Railroad.

He died in August, 1915, leaving four children. George Augustine 
(1879-196M-) graduated from Yale University in 1900 and from Harvard 
Law School about 1902. From 1903 until the Depression he practised 
law in New York City. At the time of the Depression in 1930 he 
returned to Wessygton to keep the estate together. The house now 
belongs to the fifth generation of the Washington family, but the 
surname Washington connected with the home tract as Wessnygton has 
died.

There is a movement underway in Robertson County to make the old 
plantation a park and preserve the old mansion. Meanwhile, 
the sturdy brick structure wraps itself in solitude and awaits its 
future destination.


